ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 16, 2017
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator David W/ son

Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Denni s Egan

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Al aska Police Standards Council

Lui s Ni eves
Ronda Wl | ace

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 3(MYV)

"An Act relating to the enploynent rights of enployees
state who are nenbers of the National Guard of another

territory, or district of the United States."
- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 3

SHORT TI TLE: NATL GUARD LEAVE/ REEMPLOYMENT RI GHTS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TUCK

01/ 18/ 17 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/17
01/ 18/ 17 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/18/ 17 (H) MV, STA

01/ 26/ 17 (H) MLV AT 1:30 PM GRUENBERG 120
01/ 26/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 16, 2017



01/ 26/ 17 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 02/ 17 (H) M.V AT 1:30 PM GRUENBERG 120

02/ 02/ 17 (H) Moved CSHB 3(M.V) Qut of Committee

02/ 02/ 17 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 03/ 17 (H) M.V RPT CS(M.V) 7DP

02/ 03/ 17 (H) DP: LEDOUX, SPOHNHOLZ, PARI SH,
RAUSCHER, SADDLER, REI NBOLD, TUCK

02/ 14/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120

02/ 14/ 17 (H) Heard & Held

02/ 14/ 17 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 16/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120

02/ 16/ 17 (H) Moved CSHB 3(M.V) CQut of Committee

02/ 16/ 17 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 17/ 17 (H) STA RPT CS(M.V) 6DP

02/ 17/ 17 (H) DP: JOHNSON, WOOL, KNOPP, Bl RCH,
JOSEPHSON, KREI SS- TOWKI NS

02/ 20/ 17 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 20/ 17 (H) VERSI ON: CSHB 3( MLV)

02/ 22/ 17 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 22/ 17 (S STA

03/ 16/ 17 (S) STA AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Sergeant LU S NI EVES, Appointee

Al aska Police Standards Council

Department of Public Safety

DI li ngham Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci | .

Chi ef of Police RONDA WALLACE, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Council

Department of Public Safety

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci | .

KENDRA KLOSTER, St aff

Representative Chris Tuck

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview of HB 3.

ROBERT DOEHL, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs
JBER, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 16, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 3.

MARK SAN SOUCI, Regional Legislative Liaison
Mlitary Conmmunity and Famly Policy

United States Departnent of Defense

Lakewood, WAshi ngt on

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 3.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:01 PM

CHAIR M KE DUNLEAVY called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators G essel, WIson, Coghill, Egan, and Chair
Dunl eavy.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Al aska Police Standards Counci

3:31:47 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the conmittee would hear from the
governor's appointees for the Alaska Police Standards Council.
He explained that the council's mssion is to produce and
mai ntain a highly trained and positively notivated professional,
capable of neeting contenporary |aw enforcenent standards of
per f or mance.

3:32: 30 PM
LU S N EVES, Sergeant and Appointee, Al aska Police Standards
Counci |, D | I'i ngham Al aska, provided the conmttee his

background information as foll ows:

e Oiginally from Queens, New York

 Wrked mlitary and federal |aw enforcenment in Alaska via
the U S. Coast Cuard.

* Lived in Al aska since 2004.

e Started with the Alaska State Troopers in 2006 to present.

» Served the State of Alaska as a nenber of the Mritinme
Safety Security team in Anchorage for the U S. Coast Cuard
whi ch provided maritinme infrastructure protection.

* Served in the following communities for the Alaska State
Tr oopers:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 16, 2017



o Mat-Su Valley as a nenber of patrol, DU enforcenent
team child abuse investigator, and crisis negotiator.

0 Kotzebue and the Northwest Arctic Borough as an
oversite trooper for the Village of Selaw k and other
villages in the region.

0 Anchorage as a recruiter for the Departnent of Public
Safety and supervised court security and prisoner
nmovenent for Anchorage Judicial Services.

o Currently serves in Bristol Bay as |aw enforcenent
supervisor in addition to search and rescue for the
Bristol Bay region and the Al eutian chain.

» Served on the Al aska Police Standards Council since 2013 as
bot h chai rman and vi ce chai rman.

SERGEANT NI EVES asserted that the Alaska Police Standards
Council acts as the law enforcenent conscious for the State of
Al aska. He set forth that the Al aska Police Standards Council
pronotes professionalism and pronotes the best |aw enforcenent
training and standards in the nation. He said he |ooks forward
to hopefully receiving the commttee's recomendation for
further retention on the Al aska Police Standards Council.

3:35: 58 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that Sergeant Nieves was first appointed to
the Al aska Police Standards Council on June 1, 2013; reappointed
on March 1, 2017; term expires on March 1, 2021. He added that
Sergeant N eves currently serves as the vice chairman for the
Al aska Police Standards Council.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if Sergeant N eves had recomendations to
i nprove | aw enforcenent training.

SERGEANT NI EVES replied that training was currently done very
well. He said what is really needed is inproved |aw enforcenent
pronotion within the state to encourage young kids to apply to
be | aw enforcenent officers in Al aska.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted that Sergeant Nieves is an exanple of a
person with a mlitary background that has cone into Alaska's
forces. He asked if recruiting mlitary personnel for Al aska's
| aw enforcenent is still a part of the state's recruiting.

SERCEANT N EVES replied that from an Al aska State Troopers'
point of view, troopers are required to nove around the state
and mlitary personnel and their famlies are accustoned to a
| ot of noving.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 16, 2017



3:40: 10 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL addressed | aw enforcenent famlies and asked if
famly problens cone before the council.

SERGEANT NI EVES replied that famly issues are typically at the
departnental |evel and their enployers.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the commttee would address the
next appointee. He detailed that Ronda Wallace was the chief of
police for Kodiak. He explained that Chief Wallace was appointed
to the Alaska Police Standards Council on May 31, 2016 with the
appoi ntment expiring on March 1, 2019.

3:42:16 PM

RONDA WALLACE, Chief of Police and Appointee, Al aska Police
St andards Council, Kodiak, Alaska, detailed that she has been in
| aw enforcenent for 18-1/2 years, the entire tinme in Kodiak. She
stated that she strongly believed in the "law enforcenent
m ssi on" by which:

You cannot have law without |aw enforcenment and you
cannot have |aw enforcenent officers wthout the |aws
to guide them the State of Alaska has in place those
regul ati ons which govern the conduct and the training
of those who enforce our laws being police officers

probation and parole officers, and correctional
officers, and we all nust be held to the highest of
t hose standards.

She set forth that if confirmed by the Senate State Affairs
commttee that she woul d provide advice, oversight and direction
for the executive director on issues brought before the council
She enphasized that she takes cases of msconduct very
seriously, especially wher e an enpl oyer has request ed
decertification where a violation has been so egregious that
decertification is warranted. She said if confirnmed, she would
be honored to serve alongside the council's 12 other nenbers to
serve the citizens of Al aska.

3:44: 35 PM
SENATOR W LSON asked what year she started as the chief of
police for Kodi ak.

CH EF WALLACE answered that she started in 2013 as the police
chi ef.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 16, 2017



SENATOR G ESSEL noted that the conmm ssion neets twice a year and
asked how many neetings Chief Wallace has attended.

CH EF WALLACE answered that she has attended one telephonic
heari ng and one in-person hearing.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked to confirm that Chief \Wallace has a sense
for the responsibilities and the work required for the council.

CHI EF WALLACE answer ed yes.

3:45: 34 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY opened public testinony.

3:45: 48 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY cl osed public testinony.

SENATOR G ESSEL thanked Sergeant N eves and Chief Willace for
their | aw enforcenent service in Al aska.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY read the follow ng statenent regarding conmmttee
appoi nt ment reconmendati ons:

In accordance with AS 39.05.080, the Senate State
Affairs Comm ttee revi ewed t he foll ow ng and
recommends the appointnments be forwarded to a joint
session for consideration: Sergeant Luis N eves and
Chi ef Ronda Wallace for the Police Standards Counci l
This does not reflect an intent by any of the nenbers
to vote for or against the confirmation of the
i ndi vi dual during any further sessions.

3:46: 47 PM
At ease.

HB 3- NATI ONAL GUARD LEAVE/ REEMPLOYMENT RI GHTS

3:50: 11 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order. He announced
the consideration of HB 3. [CSHB 3(MV) was before the
comittee.]

3:50: 34 PM

KENDRA KLOSTER, Staff, Representative Chris Tuck, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, introduced HB 3 speaking to the
fol | ow ng sponsor statenent:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 16, 2017



House Bill 3 seeks to correct a deficiency in
enpl oynment protections for Alaskans who are serving in
the National Guard. This is a nationwi de effort by the
Departnment of Defense to ensure those who serve their
nation for all 50 states when called to duty -
regardless of their service location - wll have
reenployment rights to their Alaskan civilian job
after conpleting the wvarious critical duties when
call ed by a governor for state active duty.

The National CGuard is a hybrid state-federal entity.
While National Guard nenbers are subject to federal
call to duty by the President of the United States,
they can also be called up for state active duty by
the Governor to respond to state energencies such as
fires, tornadoes and fl oods.

The federal Ilaw Unifornmed Services Enploynment and
Reenpl oyment Rights Act (USERRA) protects nenbers of
the Arny or Air National Guard when they are called
away fromtheir civilian jobs for federal service.

However, USERRA does not apply when a National GQuard
menber mnust |eave their job for state active duty. |If
National CGuard nenbers are to have reenploynent rights
after state active duty, it nust be through state | aw

Al aska currently has a |law that applies to enploynent
protections to the public and private enployees.
However, it is explicitly limted to nenbers of the
Al aska Arnmy or Air National Guard. There are severa
Al askan residents who serve in the National Guard of
anot her state. These Al askans currently do not have
the reenpl oynent protections for their enploynent.

By passing House Bill 3, we will extend the enpl oynent
protections to Alaskans who are serving in any
Nat i onal Guard. The  Depart nent of Def ense  has
identified this legislation as a key quality of life
issue and is actively seeking to make this policy
change across the nation. So far, 29 other states have
passed simlar legislation and 5 other states are
taking it up this session.

Please join nme in supporting House Bill 3 by making

this inportant change to protect those who are
honorably serving our nation.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 16, 2017



M5. KLOSTER detailed that 33 Alaskans currently serve in other
National Guard units. She noted that the nunber of Al askans
serving elsewhere is a self-reported nunber so there could be
nore. She reiterated that the bill ensures individuals have the
sane reenploynent rights if they are called to service. She
noted that sone of the reasons that individuals belong to
anot her Nat i onal Guard includes education and training
opportunities in the Lower 48.

3:52:36 PM
SENATOR COCHI LL asked her to confirm that the bill requires an
i ndi vidual to be a resident of Al aska.

MS. KLOSTER answered it does.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked that M. Kloster specify the residency
requi renents. He disclosed that his son-in-law went to
M ssissippi in the Air National Guard under another unit for a
year, but retained his job in Al aska because he was depl oyed for
training outside of Alaska. He asked if his son-in-law would
have qualified under the state's present statute or under the
| egi sl ation proposed in HB 3.

M5. KLOSTER asked if Senator Coghill's son-in-law was an Al askan
resident serving in another National Guard in the Lower 48.

SENATOR COCGHI LL answered yes. He detailed that his son-in-|aw
was lent for training purposes that benefited the Alaska Ar
National CGuard. He noted that he did not know if either the
current statute or hi s son-in-law s enpl oyer assur ed
reenpl oynent .

3:54:13 PM

M5. KLOSTER answered that the scenario Senator Coghill described
woul d be covered under the proposed |egislation. She noted that
she did not know of any circunstances where enployers have said
"No, you cannot have your job back." She opined that Al aska has
been very friendly to the state's service nenbers who are
serving. She specified that HB 3 is an inportant step to cover
those in case of certain circunstances rather than presenting a
bill because reenploynent did not happen for soneone that was
called to duty.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked what would occur if an Al askan resident
takes a fulltime job with the National Guard in another state.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 16, 2017



M5. KLOSTER answered that the individual would have to be an
Al askan resident. She noted that a provision was added to the
bill that protected businesses if circunstances change where an
i ndividual's position no longer exists due to downsizing, etc

She pointed out that in nobst cases the tinme away for Nationa

Guard nmenbers is not for extended periods of tine.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked M. Doehl to address his concern on the
Legi slature mandating that sonebody hold a job, explain the
depl oynment process, and if the bill applies to those that take a
fulltime position with the National Guard in another state or to
those that retain their residency when deployed to another
st at e.

3:57: 50 PM

ROBERT DOEHL, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Al aska Departnent of Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs (DWA), JBER, Al aska, noted that there are
various types of duty status.

He detailed that Title 10 of the United States Code addresses
overseas guardsman deploynment to do things that are necessary to
defend the nati on.

He explained that Title 32 of the United States Code addresses
guardsman training, either federal or state status. He specified
that federal -status training would be protected under USERRA. He
noted that a guardsman put into state-active duty for another
state guard is concei vable, but DWA has never heard of it.

He said where state-active duty is wused primarily is when a
guardsman is answering a call of the governor for natural
di sasters where tours are 72 hours or |ess.

He noted that under federal law, not related to HB 3, there is a
total tinme limt of five years where a guardsnman can be away
froma job and still have reenploynent. He added that DWA is
not aware of state-active duty ever running out as far as five
years.

SENATOR COGHILL asked M. Doehl to address soneone serving
fulltime in another guard unit in another state and if the
i ndi vidual could still try to claimresidency in Al aska.

4:00: 26 PM

MR. DOEHL answered that for soneone working fulltinme in the
Nat i onal CGuard of another state, the individual would be working
under Title 32 of the United States Code. He added that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 16, 2017



i ndi vidual would be under the federal protection to the extent
that they exist. He noted that HB 3 will not inpact the scenario
he previously descri bed.

SENATOR WLSON asked that M. Doehl address the use of the
phrase "active state service" in the bill on page 2, lines 2 and
5.

MR. DOEHL replied that "active state service" or the term used
by the National Guard, "state active duty,” would only apply to
specific-duty status for performng duties that typically
entails the role of disaster response.

SENATOR WLSON responded that he understood M. Doehl ' s

i nference, but noted that on page 1, line 12 the bill says, "O
active National CGuard service under the |law of another state;”
however, on page 2, |line 2 the phrase, "O National GCuard

service in another state" is used without the use of the word
"active."

M5. KLOSTER replied that the sentence on page 2, line 2 states

that, "A result of 'active state service' or 'National Guard
service in another state."™ She explained that when she had
talked to the bill's drafters, they said "active" would cover
both the "active state service" and the next line that notes,

“National Guard."™ She said she would double check with the
drafters to address Senator W I son's question.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY wel coned invited testinmony for HB 3.

4.:02:41 PM

MARK SAN SOUCI, Regional Legislative Liaison, Mlitary Comrunity
and Famly Policy, United States Departnent of Defense,
Lakewood, Washi ngton, testified 1in support of HB 3. He
sumari zed that HB 3 is about protecting those people in private
enpl oynent who get called for things like forest fires and have
a private enployer who wants to fire them He said 29 states
have passed legislation |like HB 3 and 5 other states are
considering the | egislation.

4:05: 23 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY held HB 3 in comittee.

4:05: 50 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair Dunleavy adjourned the Senate State Affairs Comrttee at
4:05 p.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 16, 2017



